

New York State Association for Rural Health

September 18, 2020

Dear New Board Member:

On behalf of the Governance Committee of the New York State Association for Rural Health's, **congratulations and welcome to the Board!** We are excited to have you join us in supporting NYSARH's work *to improve the health and well-being of rural New Yorkers and their communities.*

The Governance Committee is committed to supporting you throughout your time on the board, and particularly in this, your first year. Toward that end, we have assembled this binder, which provides you with documents that are useful and, often, essential to your board service. These are:

- The NYSARH Corporate By-laws
- 2020-2021 Governance Calendar
- Board Member Job Description
- Board Mentor Program Description for New Board Members
- 2020-2021 Board Member Directory
- 2020-2021 Board and Committee Meeting Schedule (in draft form)
- 2020-2021 Committee Membership List & Committee Meeting Schedule

These and other helpful documents, including meeting agendas, minutes and other materials, may also be found on the NYSARH Board Portal at https://nysarh.org/board-portal/. The password for the Portal is **HappyFeet123**. We think you will find that using the Board Portal from the very beginning of your service will both ease and enrich your experience.

Congratulations, once again, for your election to the NYSARH Board of Directors; we all look forward to working with you!

Sincerely,

The Governance Committee



New Board Member Packet

- NYSARH By-Laws
- NYSARH 2020 2021 Governance Calendar
- Board Member Job Description
- Board Mentor Program Description
- Board Member Roster
- Committee Membership List



These are links to help you navigate this packet.





BYLAWS

July 24, 2018

Revised: September 13, 2004

September 14, 2005 September 11, 2006 September 12, 2007 September 8, 2008 September 23, 2009 September 19, 2011 March 21, 2014 September 23, 2016

July 24, 2018



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I: NAME	E AND MISSION	Page	1
Section 1. Na	me	O	1
Section 2. M	ission and Purpose		1
	lission and Purpose		1
B. Va	_		1
C. Ph	ilosophy		1
ARTICLE II: OFFI	CES		2
ARTICLE III: MEM	IBERSHIP		2-3
Section 1. Eli	gibility		2
Section 2. Car			2
	oting Membership		2
	on-Voting Membership		3
Section 3. Pri			2 2 3 3 3
Section 4. Ter			3
Section 5. Du	es		3
ARTICLE IV: PAR	LIAMENTARY AUTHORITY		3
ARTICLE V: MEET	TINGS OF MEMBERS		3-4
Section 1. Ge	neral Membership		3
A. Ar	nnual Meeting		3
B. S ₁	pecial Meetings		4
C. Pl	ace of Meeting		4
	ıorum		4
E. Vo	oting		4
ARTICLE VI: BOA	RD OF DIRECTORS		4-9
Section 1. Ov	erview		4
A. Ar	nnual Meetings		4
B. Re	egular Meetings		4
C. S _I	pecial Meetings		4
D. Qւ	ıorum		5 5
	ectronic Participation		
F. Vo	oting		5
	omposition and Number		5
Section 3. Ind			5
Section 4. Eli			6
	wers and Duties		6
	ood Faith		6
	thority of the Board		6
	ection/Appointment/Term		7
	ections		7
B. Te			7
	accessive Terms		7
Section 7. Va	· · · · · ·		8
	ncancy		8
	nterim Director		8
Section 8. Re			8
Section 9. Co	mpensation		8

Section 10. Conflicts of Interest	8
A. Conflicts of Interest	8
B. Bonding	8
C. Loans	9
ARTICLE VII: OFFICERS	9-11
Section 1. Officers	9
Section 2. Elections and Terms of Office	9
Section 3. Vacancies	9
A. President	9
B. Vice-president/Treasurer/Secretary	9
Section 4. President	9
Section 5. Vice-president	10
Section 6. Treasurer	10
Section 7. Secretary	11
ARTICLE VIII: COMMITTEES	11-14
Section 1. Committees of the Board	11
A. Executive Committee	11
B. Finance Committee	12
C. Governance Committee	12
Section 2. Committees of the Corporation	12
A. Membership Committee	12
B. Policy Committee	13
C. Conference Planning Committee Section 3. Term of Office	13
Section 3. Term of Office Section 4. Vacancies	13
	13 13
Section 5. Quorum Section 6. Rules	13
Section 6. Rules	14
ARTICLE IX: REPRESENTATIVES	14
A. National Rural Health Association	14
B. Other Representation	14
ARTICLE X: BOOKS AND RECORDS	14
Section 1. Responsibility	14
ARTICLE XI: FISCAL YEAR	14
ARTICLE XII: INDEMNIFICATION	14
Section 1. Authorization	14
Section 2. Liability Limits	15
Section 3. Payment	15
ARTICLE XIII: DISSOLUTION	15
ARTICLE XIV: WAIVER OF NOTICE	15
ARTICLE XV: AMENDMENTS	15
ARTICLE XVI: SEAL	15
Record of adoption and revisions	16
Conflict of Interest Policy	17-20

NEW YORK STATE ASSOCIATION FOR RURAL HEALTH, INC.

BYLAWS

ARTICLE I: NAME AND MISSION

SECTION 1. NAME

The name of the corporation shall be the *New York State Association for Rural Health, Inc.* ("Association"). The Association was incorporated under the laws of the State of New York, as filed in the Office of the Secretary of State pursuant to the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York.

SECTION 2. MISSION AND PURPOSE

A. Mission and Purpose:

The mission of the organization is *to improve the health and well-being of rural New Yorkers and their communities*. The purpose of the Association is to lead and to collaborate on issues that affect the health, welfare, and well-being of rural New York residents and to promote equitable access and availability of health services for rural New Yorkers by partnering with other organizations, associations, and individuals with similar interests in a collegial and collaborative manner.

B. Values:

The values of the Association are to accomplish the mission and purpose stated above by:

- 1. Maintaining a diverse membership that is representative of geographic locale, culture, gender, economic status, and racial or ethnic background within rural New York.
- 2. Embracing a holistic or whole person approach to health, which recognizes the interrelationship that exists among social, physical, and emotional well-being.
- 3. Recognizing the benefit of partnering with other organizations and associations with similar interests in a collegial and collaborative manner.
- 4. Respecting the autonomy and supporting the self-determination of local communities in identifying and resolving their unique health care needs and promoting general preventive health practices.
- 5. Empowering members to effect positive change in rural health through grassroots efforts.
- 6. Promoting equitable access and availability of health services for rural New Yorkers.
- 7. Acknowledging well-informed citizens will increase rural health policy development.
- 8. Promoting the integration of health and human services for rural New Yorkers.

C. Philosophy:

The Association will provide equal opportunity to all members, Board members, employees, contractors, subcontractors, and volunteers regardless of race, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability or any other protected class status in accordance with applicable federal law. In addition, it is the policy of the Association to comply with applicable state and local laws governing nondiscrimination.

ARTICLE II: OFFICES

The principle office of the Association shall be located in a New York municipality designated by the Board of Directors.

The Association shall have and continuously maintain in the State of New York a registered office, and a registered agent whose office is identical with such registered office, as required by the New York Not-For-Profit Corporation Law. The registered office may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. ELIGIBILITY

Members of the Association shall be comprised of individuals and organizations having an interest in rural health care in New York State who have completed and signed an application form, paid dues to the Association and have been admitted to membership by or pursuant to procedures specified by the Board of Directors as set forth in these bylaws. Membership organizations who have a mission that is aligned with that of NYSARH may become members of the Association in exchange for NYSARH membership in that organization, with or without the exchange of dues, upon mutual agreement.

SECTION 2. CATEGORIES

A. Voting Membership:

Individual and organization members shall have the exclusive right to vote on all matters pertaining to the affairs of the Association, with respect to actions to be taken or to be omitted as is to be determined by the vote of the members of the Association.

1. Individual:

Individual members shall have one vote in Association matters.

2. Organization:

An organization that is approved by the Board of Directors may join as a member of the Association and will then have the authority to identify one representative from the organization to attend to all membership matters on behalf on the organization member. Any such representative will have one (1) vote on behalf of the organization member. The organization representative may also elect to become an individual member.

3. Student:

Individuals who are presently at full-time student status shall have one vote in Association matters. To qualify as a student, one must be enrolled in an institution of higher learning on a full-time basis.

B. Non-Voting Membership:

1. Honorary:

Honorary members may be designated by the Board of Directors in accordance with their capacity to advance the mission of the Association. Honorary members shall not have voting privileges or the right to hold office.

2. Sponsor:

Sponsors may be individual or organizational members that make a substantial financial contribution in an amount determined by the Board of Directors and in support of activities of the Association. As such, sponsor members will receive appropriate recognition to be established by the level of financial support. Sponsors will not have voting privileges or hold office without individual membership status.

SECTION 3. PRIVILEGES

Individual and/or organization (representative) members in good standing may hold office, be eligible to be elected to the Board of Directors. All members in any category named above may serve on Committees of the Corporation.

SECTION 4. TERM

The term of membership is one year.

SECTION 5. DUES

All members of the Association shall pay annual dues that are subject to change upon approval by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IV: PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

All meetings and business of the Association will be conducted under the provisions of Roberts Rules of Order (revised), except as superseded by these bylaws.

ARTICLE V: MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

SECTION 1. GENERAL MEMBERSHIP

A. Annual Meeting:

The annual meeting of the Association will be held at a time and place to be determined by the Board of Directors. The purpose of such meeting will be to elect the Board of Directors and conduct all such business as may be necessary to support the mission, purpose and goals of the Association. Written notice of the annual meeting shall be given to each member, by mail, at the address appearing on the books of the Association, or via electronic communication. The notice shall be distributed at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting.

B. Special Meetings:

Special meetings of the membership of the Association may be called at any time by the President or a majority of the Board of Directors, or at the request of the membership upon receipt of a written request signed by at least ten (10) percent of the members of the Association. Notice of a special meeting, stating the purpose thereof, shall be given by the secretary to all members in the same manner as notice is given for the annual meeting.

C. Place of Meeting:

The Board of Directors shall designate the location of all general membership meetings.

D. Quorum:

Those members present at the annual meeting or a special meeting of the Association shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting business.

E. Voting:

A majority of the votes of the members constituting a quorum shall be sufficient to transact business unless a greater number of votes are required by law, the Certificate of Incorporation, or these Bylaws with respect to some specified action.

ARTICLE VI: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. OVERVIEW

Individual members and the designated representative of organizational members are eligible for election to the Board of Directors of the Association. Notice of any regular or special meetings of the Board shall be given at least five (5) days in advance. Notice of the time and place of such meetings shall be given to each Director personally, verbally, or by mail, telephone or e-mail. The Board of Directors of the Corporation is by individual representation, not organizational.

A. Annual Meetings:

Annual meetings of the Board shall be held immediately following the annual general membership meeting for appointing chairs of committees and conducting such business as may be necessary.

B. Regular Meetings:

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least quarterly at a time and place determined by the Board. All regular, special, or committee meetings of the Board are open meetings. However, only the members of the Board and appropriate committees are required to be notified.

C. Special Meetings:

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or a majority of the members of the Board.

D. Quorum:

A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, so long as no greater or lesser number is required by law or the Certificate of Incorporation. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of the Board, the Directors who are present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without notice until a quorum shall be present.

E. Electronic Participation:

At the Presidents discretion, Board members may participate in any meeting of the Board through the use of telecommunications or similar equipment by means of which all persons participating can hear each other at the same time. Such participation in a meeting shall constitute presence in person at the meeting. Availability of electronic participation will be noted in meeting notices.

F. Voting:

A majority of the votes of Board Members constituting quorum shall be sufficient to transact business unless a greater number of votes are required by law, the Certification of Incorporation, or these Bylaws with respect to some specified action.

Voting by Board Members via means of written consent, including e-mail, may occur. However, the Board may only authorize an action when all directors act on a resolution AND all are in unanimous support of the action.

SECTION 2. COMPOSTION AND NUMBER

The corporate powers of the Association shall be vested in and exercised by or under the authority of a Board of Directors, which consists of the officers and the elected Board members. The Board of Directors shall have no fewer than fifteen (15) or more than twenty-one (21) voting members. At the annual meeting of the general membership, the members may, by majority vote, increase or decrease the existing number of Board positions by no more than four (4) positions. A decrease, however, may only be as a result of a vacancy. Any increased Board positions approved by the general membership shall be filled by the president with the consent of the Board for a term to last until the next annual meeting of general membership. In the case where the Vice-President does not have sufficient Board term remaining to fulfill the obligation of office, s/he will remain on the Board in addition to the mandated (15-21) members. The Board reserves the right to designate ex-officio members. Ex-Officio members serve on the Association's Board "by virtue of office." The member serves on the Board because he or she holds a certain office either within the organization or in the community. If an ex-officio Board member is a dues-paying member of the organization, there is no distinction between the ex- officio member and the other Board members. The ex-officio Board member is counted in the quorum and has the right to make motions, debate motions, and vote on all questions.

SECTION 3. INDEPENDENCE

An Independent Director is a Director who satisfies each of the following conditions. First, the Director is not, and was not at any time during the prior three years, an employee of the Corporation or any affiliate of the Corporation and does not have a relative who has been a key employee during the same time period. Second, the Director has not received, nor does he/she have a relative who has received, more than \$10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or any affiliate of the

Corporation at any time in the prior three years. Lastly, the Director is not a current employee of, nor does he/she have a substantial financial interest in, or a relative who is a current officer of, or has a substantial financial interest in, any entity that has made payments (other than charitable contributions) to, or received payments from, the Corporation, exceeding the lesser of \$25,000 or 2% of the Corporation's consolidated gross revenue at any time during the prior three years.

SECTION 4. ELIGIBILITY

In order to be nominated for, or hold office on the Board of Directors, one must be either an individual member or a representative for an organizational member of the Association as defined in Article III.

SECTION 5. POWERS AND DUTIES

Subject to any limitation in the Certificate of Incorporation and these Bylaws, and the laws of the State of New York, the Board of Directors shall have the responsibility and authority to supervise and direct the activities and resources of the Association, and to conduct all business and affairs of the Association in furtherance of its mission and goals.

A. Good Faith:

A director shall perform his/her duties, including service on any committee, in good faith and in a manner in which such director believes to be in the best interests of the Association, and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinary prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances.

B. Authority of Board:

The property, affairs, activities, business and concerns of the Association shall be vested in and managed by the Board of Directors who, in connection therewith, may devise and carry into execution such measures as they term proper and expedient to promote the objectives of the Association. In no event, however, may the Association be controlled by disqualified persons, as defined in Section 509 and other applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. In performing his/her duties, a director shall be entitled to rely upon information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by:

- 1. One or more officers or employees of the Association;
- 2. Counsel, public accountants or other persons as to matters which the director believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence;
- 3. A committee of the Board upon which the director does not serve, duly designated in accordance with a provision in the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, as to matters within its designated authority, which committee the director believes to merit confidence; so long as, in any such case, the director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry when the need therefore is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted.

Without prejudice to such general powers, and subject to the same limitations, the Directors shall have the following specific powers and duties:

- a. Employ, elect, or remove any officer, agent, or employee of the Association; prescribe such powers and duties for them as may be consistent with the laws of the State of New York, the Certificate of Incorporation and these Bylaws; fix their compensation, if any, and require of them, if it so wishes, security for their faithful performance.
- b. Cause to be kept a complete record of all minutes and acts, and to present a full statement at the annual membership meeting showing in detail the condition and affairs of the Association.
- c. Manage the affairs of the Association and report its activities to the membership at the annual meeting.
- d. Act as trustee for all property, real and personal, of the Association.
- e. Approve and authorize all unusual or extraordinary expenditures of the Association's funds.
- f. Adopt the annual Association budget.
- g. Adopt such rules as are necessary to conduct its affairs.
- h. Establish committees and define their duties, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws.
- i. Approve the appointment of official representatives and define their duties.
- j. No member of the Association, receiving salary from the Association, may serve as a member of the board concurrent with the term of employment.
- k. Act on business not otherwise provided for by the Certificate of Incorporation and these Bylaws.
- 1. Fill vacancies consistent with the intent of the Bylaws.

SECTION 6. ELECTION /APPOINTMENT /TERM

A. Elections:

The Board of Directors shall be elected by the membership of the Association. The mechanism of nominations and elections shall be determined by policy of the Board and shall be circulated to the membership at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual membership meeting.

B. Terms:

Directors shall serve three (3) year terms, with a limit of three (3) consecutive terms. The fulfillment of the remainder of the term of another board member shall not be included in the three-term limit.

C. Successive Terms:

Any director may succeed him/herself but may not serve more than three (3) terms in succession unless as necessary to fill a vacant elected office. The fulfillment of the remainder of the term of another board member shall not be included in the three-term limit.

SECTION 7. VACANCY

A. Vacancy:

In the event a director vacates his/her position, the vacancy shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining directors or left vacant until the next annual meeting. Vacancy due to change in membership status or lapse or termination of membership in the Association shall be automatic and not require Board action.

B. Interim Director:

Directors appointed to fill a vacancy shall hold office until the next annual election by the membership, at which time the Governance Committee may submit their name for election by the membership. If elected, they will be eligible to serve two, three-year terms.

SECTION 8. REMOVAL

Any director may be removed, with or without cause, by two-thirds (2/3) vote cast by members of the Board of Directors at a duly called Board of Directors meeting or by members of the Association having voting privileges, represented in person, at any annual or special meeting of the Association. Any member of the board who has two (2) unexcused consecutive meeting absences shall be contacted by the Executive Director of the Association regarding their intent to serve on the Board. Any member of the Board who has three (3) unexcused consecutive meeting absences shall receive a letter from the President of the Association regarding their absences and shall be requested to submit a letter stating their intent to the Board. If such notice of intent is not received prior to the fourth consecutive meeting, the Board may declare the position vacant.

SECTION 9. COMPENSATION

Members of the Board of Directors shall receive no compensation for their services but may, as determined by Board policy, receive reimbursement for such reasonable expenses as may be necessary in pursuance of the business of the Association.

SECTION 10. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A. Conflicts of Interest:

Conflicts of Interests, including procedures for considering Related Party Transactions, shall be resolved by the Governance Committee pursuant to the Conflict of Interest Policy which is appended to these bylaws and made a part hereof. Modifications to the Conflict of Interest Policy may be made by a majority vote of the Board in attendance at a duly called meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present, without regard to the procedures herein to amend these bylaws.

B. Bonding:

All officers and other persons authorized to handle or disburse funds of the Association may, at the discretion of the Board, be bonded at the expense of the Association in such amount as the Board may determine to be adequate for protection of the Association.

C. Loans:

No loans shall be made by the Association to its Board members or officers.

ARTICLE VII: OFFICERS

SECTION 1. OFFICERS

The officers shall be a President, Vice-President, Treasurer, and Secretary.

SECTION 2. ELECTION AND TERMS OF OFFICE

A President, Vice-President, Treasurer, and Secretary shall be elected annually by the members of the Association from among the Board of Directors. A candidate for office must have been a member of the Board of Directors for a period of at least one year.

Ballots will be distributed thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting to elect officers and Board of Directors of the Association. The ballot must be returned to the Association ten (10) days prior to the annual meeting. The results of the balloting will be announced at the annual meeting.

SECTION 3. VACANCIES

A. President:

A vacancy in the office of president, with fewer than six (6) months to serve in the term, shall be filled automatically through succession in the following order: Vice-President, Treasurer, Secretary. A vacancy in the office of president, with more than six (6) months to serve in the term shall be filled by the election by the Board of Directors of a past-president to fulfill the remainder of the term of president upon three-fourths (3/4) majority vote.

B. Vice-President / Treasurer / Secretary:

A vacancy in the office of Vice-President, Treasurer, and/or Secretary shall be filled by the Board on an interim basis until the next annual meeting where such position will be filled by the vote of the general membership.

SECTION 4. PRESIDENT

The president shall be a member of the executive committee, the Board of Directors, and all committees of the Association.

The president shall be the principal executive officer of the Association and shall in general supervise all the business and affairs of the Association and shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors. The President may execute, with the Treasurer, or any other individual of the Association authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments, which the Board of Directors has authorized. The president is limited to serving two (2) consecutive one-year (1) terms which may be in addition to two (2), three-year (3) terms of service on the Board of Directors.

SECTION 5. VICE-PRESIDENT

The Vice-President shall be a member of both the executive committee and the Board of Directors. The Vice-President shall preside at all meetings in the absence or disability of the President, assuming all duties of the president during such absence or disability.

The Vice-President shall assist the president as presiding officer and shall perform all duties as incident to the office of Vice-President and other duties, as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or President. The Vice-President is limited to serving two (2) consecutive one-year (1) terms as vice-president, which may be in addition to two (2), three-year (3) terms of service on the Board of Directors.

SECTION 6. TREASURER

The Treasurer shall be a member of both the executive committee and the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall be provided with a bond for the faithful discharge of duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties, as the Board of Directors shall determine. The treasurer shall have charge, custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Association; receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the Association from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the Association in such banks, trust companies or other depositories, and in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the president or by the Board of Directors.

In general, the Treasurer is authorized by the Association to have primary responsibility for interacting with fiscal staff, the corporation's certified public accountants, investment managers, and others as necessary, to monitor the Association's financial position and report to the full Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall act in regular consultation with Finance Committee in fulfilling these responsibilities.

The Treasurer will cause either an annual audit or annual financial review to be performed by a certified public accountant and assure adequate copies to be presented to the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is responsible for annually determining whether an audit or review is warranted, based upon but not limited to factors such as revenues, funding sources and State and Federal laws and regulations. The Treasurer is responsible for carrying out this decision and reporting to the Board of Directors.

The Treasurer is limited in serving up to two (2) consecutive one (1) year terms, which may be in addition to two (2), three-year (3) terms of service on the Board of Directors.

Signatures on all checks drawn on Association's accounts shall be that of the Treasurer and/or President or other authorized member of the Board of Directors.

All funds of the Association shall be deposited in a timely fashion to the credit of the Association. The treasurer and/or president shall establish or maintain a checking account in the corporate name of the Association at a bank convenient to the treasurer and/or president. All accounts shall be insured by an agency of the federal government.

The Treasurer, with the President, shall be responsible for establishing or maintaining a savings account with, and for the purchase of appropriate investment vehicles, from a bank or other financial institution convenient to the treasurer. This account and investments shall be used for depositing funds not needed for regular operating expenses. All deposits and withdrawals must be reviewed by the Board and entered into the official minutes of the Association. The treasurer shall request Board approval of an investment plan at a Board meeting.

SECTION 7. SECRETARY

The Secretary shall be a member of both the executive committee and the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall keep complete records of all proceedings of the Association, executive committee, and the Board; shall have custody of all records except as otherwise provided for in the management manual of the Association; shall notify all officers and committee members of their election or appointment; and perform all other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or President.

The Secretary is limited in serving up to two (2) consecutive one (1) year terms, which may be in addition to two (2), three-year (3) terms of service on the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VIII: COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Committees of the Board, also referred to as "standing committees," are those Committees that have the power to bind the Board within statutory limitations. Committees of the Board must be comprised solely of Directors. Committees of the Board include the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, and the Governance Committee.

A. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee shall be comprised of the President, Vice- President, Secretary, Treasurer, and Chairpersons of all Committees of the Board. Additional members of the Board may be appointed to serve on the Committee at the discretion of the President. The President shall serve as the Chair of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall maintain surveillance of the business and affairs of the Corporation and shall be empowered to transact only such business as may be necessary between meetings of the Board. The Committee shall be responsible for overseeing the personnel affairs of the Corporation, including, but not limited to developing and reviewing personnel policies and hiring, training, supervising evaluating and, if necessary, terminating the Corporation's Executive Director. The Committee shall also be responsible for ensuring that the Corporation engages in strategic planning. Meetings of the Committee may be called by the Chair or by any member of the Committee. The Committee shall submit a report of its actions at all regularly scheduled or special meetings of the Board.

B. Finance Committee

- 1. The Finance Committee shall be comprised of at least three (3) members of the <u>Board.</u> The Chair shall be appointed by the President.
- 2. The Finance Committee shall assist the Treasurer in developing an annual budget; review disbursements; make recommendations to the Board with regard to expenditures; seek, develop, and manage additional revenue; and develop appropriate recommendations to the Board for long-term financing of the <u>Association</u>.

C. Governance Committee

The Governance Committee members shall be responsible for identifying persons qualified to serve as officers of the Association. The Chair shall be appointed by the President. The Governance Committee shall be comprised of a minimum three (3) members.

The Governance Committee shall be responsible for identifying persons qualified for, and interested in, becoming board members.

The Chairperson of the Governance Committee shall accept additional nominations if such nomination is submitted in writing and accompanied by the written consent of the candidate. The Chairperson of the Governance Committee shall validate the additional nominations and include the names of these candidates with a short biography in the official ballot.

The Governance Committee shall also be responsible for conducting the election, counting ballots of the election, and reporting the results of the election at the annual meeting. Ballots shall be distributed thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting for the election of Directors and officers of the Board. The ballot must be returned to the Association ten (10) days prior to the annual meeting.

The Governance Committee shall also periodically review, update and recommend proposed changes to the bylaws to the board.

SECTION 2. COMMITTEES OF THE CORPORATION

The Board may establish Committees of the Corporation, also referred to as "ad hoc" committees. Committees of the Corporation shall not have the authority of the Board. Members of Committees of the Corporation shall be selected by the President and may include both Directors and non-Directors. Committees of the Corporation shall include the Membership Committee, the Policy Committee, the Conference Planning Committee, and such other committees as the Board may establish from time to time.

A. Membership Committee

There shall be a membership committee comprised of at least three (3) members of the Association. The committee shall be responsible for marketing the Association to potential members and the retention of members, including developing value added benefits for membership. The committee will be responsible for determining the eligibility of new applicants. This committee shall be

responsible to promote the Association through internal and external communication and coordinating publications and electronic media.

B. Policy Committee

The New York State Association of Rural Health supports the legislation of rural health and rural health policy. The Association seeks to establish broad membership consensus in support of public policies that assure adequate access to and quality of health services for rural populations in New York State. To this end, the Association is committed to providing education of legislative issues, and to participate in coalitions to advance the interests of the public's health.

The legislative and health policy interests of the Association are defined as those interests that are brought forth by the general membership and goals established by the Board of Directors. The committee shall:

- a) Advise the Board of Directors on existing and emerging policy issues
- b) Assist in formulating persuasive advocacy arguments and positions, `and
- c) Monitor and coordinate advocacy activities.

The Policy Committee shall be comprised of at least three (3) members of the Association.

C. Conference Planning Committee

1. The Conference Planning Committee shall be comprised of at least three (3) members of the Association. responsible for the planning, coordination, administration, and evaluation of the NYSARH Annual Conference

There shall be an awards sub-group of the Conference Planning Committee. The awards sub-group shall seek out, *for formal recognition on an annual basis*, those individuals and organizations that strive to fulfill the mission of the New York State Association for Rural Health.

SECTION 3. TERM OF OFFICE

Each member of a committee shall be appointed by the President. Each member of a committee shall serve a term of year.

SECTION 4. VACANCIES

Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments.

SECTION 5. QUORUM

Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting, including the business segment of the annual meeting at which a quorum is present, shall be the act of the committee.

SECTION 6. RULES

Each committee may adopt rules for its own governance not inconsistent with these Bylaws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX: REPRESENTATIVES

Representatives will be responsible for providing regular reports to the Board.

A. National Rural Health Association:

The President shall recommend one (1) member of the Board of Directors to serve with the Executive Director of the Association as representatives to the NRHA State Association Council. The Board approved representative shall serve for the term of the President.

B. Other Representation:

The Board of Directors may decide to which other organizations the Association may send representatives and prescribe the qualifications and terms for each representative with the Executive Director of the Association.

ARTICLE X: BOOKS AND RECORDS

SECTION 1. RESPONSIBILITY

The Secretary, Treasurer, and President shall be responsible for assuring that correct and complete books and records of the Association are maintained. The Association will keep a complete record of proceedings of meetings of the Board of Directors and all committees. The Board shall be responsible for assuring the accuracy of all records.

ARTICLE XI: FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall be January 1 through December 31.

ARTICLE XII: INDEMNIFICATION

SECTION 1. AUTHORIZATION

The Association shall indemnify any person against any and all judgments, fines, amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of actions or threatened actions, and reasonable expenses, including attorney's fees, actually and necessarily incurred in connection therewith or as a result of such action or proceeding, or any appeal there from, to which she/he is made, or threatened to be made, a party by reason of the fact that she/he is or was a Director or office of the Board, or the Executive Director of the Association, or of any corporation of any kind, domestic or foreign, which she/he served in any capacity at the request of the Association, if and to the full extent permitted by laws. Expenses so incurred by any such person in defending a civil or criminal action or proceeding shall by request be paid by the Association in advance of the final disposition of such action or proceeding, if and to the full extent permitted by law. Upon appropriate action by the Board of Directors, the Association

may purchase and maintain insurance, if and to the full extent permitted by law, relating to the indemnification of its officers and the Association.

SECTION 2. LIABILITY LIMITS

Board members of the Association shall enjoy the greatest limitation on individual liability that may be authorized under New York State Law, provided, however, that this limitation shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a Board member for acts or omissions that involve intentional misconduct by a Board member, or a knowing violation of law.

SECTION 3. PAYMENT

Payment authorized hereunder may include amounts paid and expenses incurred in settling any such action or threatened action, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs of suit. The term "person" where used herein, shall include the estate, personal representatives, heirs, legatees, or devisors of such person.

ARTICLE XIII: DISSOLUTION

Activities of the Association shall be so conducted in such fashion that no part of its income or property and earnings shall inure to the benefit of any member, director, officer, or other individual or institution or association. Upon dissolution, any assets of the Association shall be distributed to an organization enjoying an exempt status under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code or successor statutory authority.

ARTICLE XIV: WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of applicable statutes, Bylaws or Certificate of Incorporation, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Signing an approval of any minutes or resolution of any meeting of the board shall be deemed a waiver of notice thereof. Audiotapes of telephoned waivers shall be deemed a valid waiver of notice thereof.

ARTICLE XV: AMENDMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Association, by affirmative vote of a two-thirds majority of the Directors, may alter, amend, or revoke these bylaws at any Board meeting of the Association, providing that written notice of proposed changes shall be given to all Board members at least fourteen (14) days prior to any action being taken.

ARTICLE XVI: SEAL

The seal of the Association shall be in such form as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT that the foregoing bylaws were adopted as the bylaws of the Association by resolution of the Board of Directors, on September 26, 2002 and ratified by the membership of the Association on November 6, 2002.

In addition, revisions to the bylaws were adopted as the bylaws of the Association by resolution of the Board of Directors, on September 13, 2004 and ratified by the membership of the Association on September 13, 2004.

Further revisions to the bylaws were approved by the Board of Directors on August 5, 2005 and ratified by the membership of the Association on September 14 2005.

Further revisions to the bylaws were approved by the Board of Directors on June 22, 2006 and ratified by the membership of the Association on September 11 2006.

Further revisions to the bylaws were approved by the Board of Directors on July 20, 2007 and ratified by the membership of the Association on September 12, 2007.

Further revisions to the bylaws were approved by the Board of Directors on and ratified by the membership of the Association on September 23, 2009.

Further revisions to the bylaws were approved by the Board of Directors on and ratified by the membership of the Association on September 19, 2011.

Further revisions to the bylaws were approved by the Board of Directors on March 21, 2014 and ratified by the membership of the Association on 2014.

Further revisions to the bylaws were approved by the Board of Directors on September 23, 2016.

Further revisions to the bylaws were approved by the Board of Directors on July 24, 2018.

NEW YORK STATE ASSOCIATION FOR RURAL HEALTH CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

A. Purpose

This conflict of interest policy is designed to foster public confidence in the integrity of the New York State Association for Rural Health ("the Association") and to protect its interests when it is contemplating entering a transaction or arrangement that might benefit a director, officer, key employee or other related party. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

B. Definitions

1. Key Employee

Any employee of the Association who is in a position to exercise substantial influence over its affairs is a *Key Employee*.

2. Related Party

A *Related Party* means (i) any Director, Officer or Key Employee of the Association or any affiliate of the Association; (ii) any relative of any persons described in (i) above; or (iii) any entity in which a person described in (i) or (ii) has a 35 percent or more ownership or beneficial interest (or in the case of a partnership or professional corporation, a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5 percent).

3. Relative

A *Relative* of an individual means his or her (i) spouse, ancestors, brothers and sisters (whether whole or half blood), children (whether natural or adopted), grandchildren, great-grandchildren, and spouses of brothers, sisters, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren; or (ii) domestic partner as defined in section twenty-nine hundred ninety-four-a of the public health law."

4. Financial Interest

A person has a *Financial Interest* if he/she may benefit financially from a decision he/she could make in his/her capacity as a related party, including indirect benefits to family members or businesses with which the person is closely associated. This includes:

- a. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Association has a transaction or arrangement
 - --or--
- b. A compensation* arrangement with the Association or with any entity or individual with which the Association has a transaction or arrangement
 - --or--
- c. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the Association is negotiating a transaction or arrangement
- *Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial.

A conflict of interest exists with respect to a person who has a Financial Interest in a particular transaction or arrangement only if the Board of Directors determines that a conflict of interest exists.

5. Interested Person

A person with a financial interest in a transaction is an *Interested Person*.

6. Related Party Transaction

Any transaction, agreement or arrangement with which a Related Party has a Financial Interest, and in which the Association or any affiliate of the Association is a participant, is a *Related Party Transaction*.

7. Conflict of interest

A *Conflict of Interest* is present when, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, an Interested Person's stake in a transaction is such that it reduces the likelihood that his/her influence can be exercised impartially in the best interests of the Association.

C. Procedures pertaining to conflicts

1. Duty to Disclose

In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an Interested Person must, upon learning of the proposed transaction, promptly disclose the existence of his/her Financial Interest in the transaction to the Chair of the Governance Committee or the President.

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists

With regard to a related party transaction, the Governance Committee shall determine if a Conflict of Interest exists. The Interested Person shall provide such information to the Committee as the Committee reasonably requests regarding the Interested Person's Financial Interest in a transaction, but shall not be present during the Committee's discussion or determination of whether a Conflict of Interest exists.

3. Procedures for Addressing a Conflict of Interest

The Board shall follow the procedures set forth below in order to decide what measures are needed to protect the Association's interests in light of the nature and seriousness of the conflict, to decide whether to enter into the transaction and, if so, to ensure that the terms of the transaction are appropriate.

- a. An Interested Person may make a presentation at the governing board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
- b. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.

- c. After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine whether the Association can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a more advantageous transaction or arrangement form a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.
- d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the Association's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

4. Violations

- a. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe that a Director has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the Director of the basis for this belief and afford the Director an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.
- b. If, after hearing the Director's response and making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the Board determines that the Director has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, the Board shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

D. Procedures for Related Party Transactions

Neither the Board nor any committee of the Board shall approve any Related Party Transaction unless it determines that the Related Party Transaction is fair, reasonable and in the Association's best interest.

- a. Prior to entering into a Related Party Transaction the Board or any committee of the Board must consider alternatives to the Related Party Transaction to the extent feasible.
- b. The Board or committee considering the Related Party Transaction must approve the transaction by not less than a majority vote of the directors present at the meeting considering the transaction.
- c. The Board or committee considering the Related Party Transaction must contemporaneously document the basis for the Board's or committee.

E. Records of Proceedings

The minutes of the Board and all committees with board delegated powers shall contain:

- a. the name of the Related Party who disclosed or was otherwise determined to have a Financial Interest in a transaction;
- b. the nature of the Financial Interest and whether it was determined to constitute a Conflict of Interest or a Related Party Transaction;
- c. any alternative transactions considered;
- d. the members of the Board or committee who were present during the deliberations

- on the transaction, those who voted on it, and to what extent interested persons were excluded from the deliberations;
- e. any comparability data or other information obtained and relied upon by the Board or committee and how the information was obtained; and,
- f. the result of the vote, including, if applicable, the terms of the transaction that was approved and the date it was approved.

F. Compensation

- a. A Director who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Association for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that Director's compensation.
- b. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Association for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- c. No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Association, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.

G. Annual Disclosure and Compliance Statements

Upon the initial election of a Director and annually thereafter, each Director shall provide a written statement disclosing, to the best of the Director's knowledge, any entity in which such Director is an officer, director, trustee, member, owner (including as a partner or sole proprietor) or employee and with which the Association has a relationship and in which such Director may have a Conflict of Interest. Such disclosures shall be reviewed by the Governance Committee.



2020-2021 NYSARH Board Governance Calendar

Timing	Task	Designee
September	Host the Association's Annual Membership Meeting	Entire Board
	Appoint Committee Chairs	President
	Confirm Committee Composition	Staff
	Prepare and disseminate Board and Committee meeting calendar	Staff
	Provide Annual Conflict of Interest Training	Governance
	Collect Disclosure of Financial Interest Forms	Governance
October	Update Board Composition and Recruitment Matrix	Governance
	Prepare application for NRHA Technical Assistance Program Funds	Staff & Exec
November	Participate in National Rural Health Day Advocacy Initiative by making in-district legislative contacts	All members
	Approve application for NRHA Technical Assistance Program funds	Entire Board
December	Develop annual legislative agenda	Policy
January	Initiate annual financial review	Entire Board
Jan-April	Conduct advocacy around state budget	Policy
February	Participate in NRHA Policy Institute, Washington, DC	Delegation
June	Receive report on financial review	Entire Board
May-July	Consider current composition of the Board Develop slate of candidates for Board membership and Offices	Governance Governance
July	Conduct mid-year evaluation of vendor for Management Services	Executive
August	Initiate annual election of board members and officers	Governance



Board Member Job Description

The New York State Association for Rural Health (NYSARH) is a not-for-profit organization established in 2001 with the mission of improving the health and well-being of New York State's rural people and communities. The organization is governed by a Board of Directors with no fewer than fifteen (15) and no more than twenty-one (21) voting members representing diverse geographies and sectors. Membership on the NYSARH's Board of Directors provides a unique opportunity to support the mission and function of the organization while being part of a diverse network of people that share a passion for and commitment to improving the health of NY's rural people and places.

Expectations of Board service

Serving on NYSARH's Board of Directors requires real commitment. This is a *working board*, and every member is expected to do the following:

- Prepare for and attend bi-monthly board meetings (typically, by phone)
- Serve on at least one Committee of the Board or the Corporation, which includes participating in its meetings (typically, by phone) and contributing to committee work between meetings
- Participate in planning the annual NYSARH Conference
- Solicit conference sponsors
- Contribute to capacity-building efforts, including developing new revenue from grants, contracts, services, etc.
- Support the annual membership drive, and year-round efforts to recruit new members and re-engage lapsed members
- Participate in NYSARH's advocacy efforts at the state and federal levels
- Serve as an ambassador for the organization, seeking connections and linkages with individuals and other organizations that would advance the work of NYSARH
- Represent the organization, when expressly requested by the Board, at conferences and other events
- Abide by the bylaws, code of conduct and other polices that apply to the board
- Establish, review and monitor polices that guide core operational practices (eg. financial management, human resource management)
- Participate in the periodic review of NYSARH's mission and objectives and the development of strategic plans
- Monitor the performance of the organization in relation to objectives and core values
- Keep informed about community issues relevant to the mission and objectives of NYSARH
- Participate in policy, management and election discussion and decisions
- Exercise voting rights
- Assist in the creation of standing, special and/or ad-hoc committees as needed
- Work as a team member and support board decisions
- Demonstrate board member responsibilities of care, loyalty, and obedience

Term of service

The term of service is three (3) years initiated by election by the Annual Meeting of the Association in September. Generally, Board members may not serve more than three consecutive terms.

Estimated Time commitment

- Participation in bi-monthly meetings of the Entire Board: 2 hrs/meeting (with prep)
- Service on at least one committee of the board or corporation, including meetings (~12 hrs/committee/yr) and work between meetings (~12 hrs/committee/yr)
- Attending the annual conference: 2.5 days, typically in September
- Other work on behalf of NYSARH: ~3-4 hrs/month

Duties and Authority

As per the Association's corporate bylaws, the duties of Board Members are as follows:

- Employ, elect, or remove any officer, agent, or employee of the Association; prescribe such powers and duties for them as may be consistent with the laws of the State of New York, the Certificate of Incorporation, and the corporate Bylaws; fix their compensation, if any, and require of them, if it so wishes, security for their faithful performance
- Cause to be kept a complete record of all minutes and acts, and to present a full statement at the annual membership meeting showing in detail the condition and affairs of the Association
- Manage the affairs of the Association and report its activities to the membership at the annual meeting
- Act as trustee for all property, real and personal, of the Association
- Adopt the annual Association budget
- Approve and authorize all unusual or extraordinary expenditures of the Association's funds
- Adopt such rules as are necessary to conduct its affairs
- Establish committees and define their duties, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws
- Approve the appointment of official representatives and define their duties
- Act on business not otherwise provided for by the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws
- Fill vacancies consistent with the intent of the Bylaws

As per the Association's corporate bylaws, there are limits to the authority of individual members of the Board. Specifically, individual board members have no authority to approve actions by NYSARH, speak on its behalf, or direct its staff, unless expressly given such authority by the board.



Board Mentor Program Description

for

New Board Members

NYSARH's Board Mentor Program is designed to help integrate and engage new board members from the very start of their board service. As the name suggests, the program pairs an incoming board member with an experienced board member who is asked to serve as a "mentor." As a new board member, you should expect the following from this program:

- The support of your Board Mentor throughout the New Board Member Orientation Process. The Board Mentor can help to fill-in gaps, offer context when necessary, and translate any acronyms or terms that are used.
- A call or visit with your Board Mentor before your first board meeting. Expect your Board Mentor to schedule a call or visit so they can get to know you a little bit. He or she will give you a sense of what to expect at the first board meeting (including what to wear, how the meeting flows, and any practices that may be unique to our board). They may also gather information to use in introducing you at your first board meeting, beyond the information provided in your bio.
- The support of your Board Mentor at your first board meeting. Your Board Mentor will be the first friendly face you see upon arrival, will save a seat next to his/her own at the board table, and will make sure you get introduced as people come in.
- An introduction by the Board Mentor at your first board meeting. Your Board Mentor will work with the Board Chair to ensure that the board agenda allows time at the start for a formal introduction. While board members may have seen your bio, this is an opportunity for the Mentor to fill-in the blanks and offer something along the lines of: "One thing I learned that his/her bio doesn't tell you is..." Time will also be made for the rest of the board to offer their own introductions, too, so you will know who is sitting at the table.
- Coaching from your Board Mentor during your first board meeting. During your first board meeting, your Board Mentor will sit next to you in order to quietly provide additional background information, translate terms and acronyms, and help you navigate through the board materials.
- **Follow-up after your first and subsequent board meetings.** Your Board Mentor will debrief with you after meetings to provide additional information, a bit of history, or the perspective that a long-time board member can bring; they will also answer any questions that you may have.

- An opportunity to talk between meetings. If you miss a meeting, your Board Mentor is available to walk you through some of the key discussion items.
- Guidance regarding committee assignments. Board members will tell you that they feel most engaged when
 they are doing committee work—but only if they are on the right committee and the work feels meaningful.
 Your Board Mentor will help you to identify the right committee to join, and will check in periodically about
 your committee service.

In order for the Board Mentor Program to be valuable for new board members and the Board as a whole, new board members are asked to engage with and be responsive to their Board Mentor. In order for the Board Mentor Program to work well, it should be a team effort.

Should you ever have any questions, comments, or suggestions about the Board Mentor Program, please refer those to the Governance Committee. Your feedback is important to us, so please don't hesitate to chime in!

New York State Association for Rural Health 2020-2021 Board Roster

	Name	Business Contact Info	End of Term 1	Current Term Expiration	Committee Participation
1	Ann Morse Abdella Treasurer	A ² Rural Health 276 Kiantone Road Jamestown, NY 14701 Phone: 716-499-7553 abdella@a2rh.net	Sept 2022	Sept 2022	Finance (Chair) Policy Executive
2	Ann Battaglia	Healthy Community Alliance 1 School Street, Suite 100 Gowanda, NY 14070 Phone: 716-532-1010 abattaglia@hcanetwork.org	Sept 2019	Sept 2022	Governance
3	Barry Brogan	North Country Behavioral Health Network PO Box 891, 126 Kiwassa Rd. Saranac Lake, NY 12983 Phone: 518.891.9460 barry@behavioralhealthnet.org	Sept 2020	Sept 2020	Policy (Chair) Executive
4	Alison Coates Secretary	Clarkson University 8 Clarkson Avenue Potsdam, NY 13676 Phone: 928-853-2214 coatesa@clarkson.edu	Sept 2022	Sept 2022	Membership Executive
5	Charlotte Crawford	Lake Plains Community Care Network 575 East Main Street Batavia, NY 14020 Phone: 585.345.6110 ccrawford@lakeplains.org	Sept 2015	Sept 2021	Membership
6	Anthony D'Agostino	NYS Governor's Traffic Safety Committee Department of Motor Vehicles 6 Empire State Plaza, Room 410B Albany, NY, 12228 Phone: (518) 474-5111 anthony.dagostino@dmv.ny.gov	Sept 2023	Sept 2023	Membership Education

	Name	Business Contact Info	End of Term 1	Current Term Expiration	Committee Participation
7	Scott Emery	M.S. Hall & Associates, LLC One Lincoln Center, 110 W Fayette St #1215, Syracuse, NY 13202 Phone: (315) 478-0425 (315) 546-4886 scott.emery@mshallassociates.com	Sept 2023	Sept 2023	Policy Membership
8	Helen Evans President	Ardent Solutions 85 N. Main St., Suite 4 Wellsville, NY 14895 Phone: 585.593.5223 evansh@ardentnetwork.org	Sept 2018	Sept 2021	Executive (Chair) All Others
9	Richard Kazel	Syracuse VA Medical Center 800 Irving Ave. Syracuse, NY 13210 Phone: 315.425.2405 richard.kazel@va.gov	Sept 2018	Sept 2021	Finance
10	Nancy McGraw	Sullivan County Public Health Services 50 Community Lane Liberty, NY 12754 Phone: 845.292.5910 ext 2179 Nancy.mcgraw@co.sullivan.ny.us	Sept 2021	Sept 2021	Policy Finance
11	Bryan O'Donovan	UR Medicine - St. James Hospital 7329 Seneca Road North Hornell, NY 14843 Phone: (607) 247-2200 bryan_odonovan@urmc.rochester.edu	Sept 2023	Sept 2023	Governance Policy
12	Gertrude O'Sullivan	Foundation for Community Health 478 Cornwall Bridge Road Sharon, CT 06069 Phone: 860.364.5157 gertrude@fchealth.org	Sept 2016	Sept 2022	Governance Education
13	Claire Parde	The Healthcare Consortium 325 Columbia Street, Suite 200 Hudson, NY 12534 Phone: 518.822.8820 cparde@columbiahealthnet.org	Sept 2018	Sept 2021	Governance (Chair) Executive Policy

	Name	Business Contact Info	End of Term 1	Current Term Expiration	Committee Participation
14	Paul Pettit	Genesee & Orleans County Health Department 14016 Route 31 West Albion, NY 14411 Phone: 585-589-3250 paul.pettit@orleanscountyny.gov	Sept 2022	Sept 2022	Policy
15	Michael Pease	The Chautauqua Center 319 Central Avenue Dunkirk, NY 14048 Phone: 716.363.6890 mpease@thechataquacenter.org	Sept 2021	Sept 2021	Membership (Chair) Finance Executive
16	Mandy Qualls	CNY Area Health Education Center 9 Main St, Cortland, NY 13045 Phone: (607) 756-1090 mqualls@cnyahec.org	Sept 2023	Sept 2023	Membership Policy
17	Victoria Reid	Ellenville Regional Rural Health Network 10 Healthy Way, Ellenville, NY 12428 Phone: (845) 647-6400 vreid@erhny.org	Sept 2023	Sept 2023	Policy
18	Carrie Roseamelia	Rural Medical Scholars Program Upstate Medical University 475 Irving Ave., Suite 200 Syracuse, NY 13210 Phone: 315.464.6987 roseamec@upstate.edu	Sept 2019	Sept 2019	Membership
19	John "Jack" Salo Vice-President	Rural Health Network of SCNY 2663 Main Street Whitney Point, NY 13862 Phone: 607.692.7669 jsalo@rhnscny.org	Sept 2018	Sept 2021	Finance Executive
20	Mary Zelazny	Finger Lakes Community Health 14 Maiden lane Penn Yan, NY 14527 Phone: 315.531.9102 maryz@flchealth.org	Sept 2016	Sept 2021	Finance

Karen Ma Ex-Officio	,	n/a	n/a	
------------------------	---	-----	-----	--

Committee Membership List NYSARH 2020-2021

NYSARH Committee Members

2020-2021 Bold = off-cycle

Committees of the		2020-2021	Bold - On-cyc	
Board:	Members	Email Address(es)	Dat	es
Executive		nth opposite board meetings at 2:00 pm		
	Helen Evans (Chair)	evansh@ardentnetwork.org		
	Jack Salo	jsalo@rhnscny.org	10/26/2020	
Liaisons	Ann Abdella	abdella@a2rh.net	12/28/2020	
Karin Blackburn	Alison Coates	alison.m.coates@gmail.com	2/22/2020	
Sara Wall Bollinger	Claire Parde	cparde@columbiahealthnet.org	4/26/2020	
	Barry Brogan	barry@behavioralhealthnet.org	6/28/2020	
	Michael Pease	mpease@thechautauquacenter.org	8/23/2020	
	Education Committee Chair			
Finance	Meets 1st Thursday of almost	every month at 11am		
	Ann Abdella (Chair)	abdella@a2rh.net		
	Richard Kazel	richard.kazel@va.gov	10/2/2020	4/1/2020
Liaison	Mary Zelazny	maryz@flchealth.org	11/5/2020	5/6/2020
Karin Blackburn	Michael Pease	mpease@thechautauquacenter.org	11/3/2020	7/1/2020
	Nancy McGraw	Nancy.mcgraw@co.sullivan.ny.us	1/7/2020	
	Jack Salo	jsalo@rhnscny.org	2/4/2020	
	Helen Evans	evansh@ardentnetwork.org	3/4/2020	
Governance	Meets 3rd Monday of almost	every month at 11 a.m.		
	Claire Parde (Chair)	cparde@columbiahealthnet.org	9/28/2020	3/15/2020
	Gertrude O'Sullivan	gertrude@fchealth.org	10/19/2020	
Liaison	Ann Battaglia	abattaglia@hcanetwork.org	11/16/2020	5/17/2020
Sara Wall Bollinger	Bryan O'Donovan	bryan odonovan@urmc.reochester.edu	12/21/2020	6/21/2020
	Helen Evans	evansh@ardentnetwork.org	1/11/2020	7/19/2020
			2/8/2020	8/16/2020

Committee Membership List NYSARH 2020-2021

Committees of the						
Corporation:	Members	Email Address(es)			Dat	es
		Board Members		Not Board Members		
Membership	Meets 1st Tuesdays of almo	·				
	Michael Pease (Chair)	mpease@thechautauquacenter.org	Heather Brown	Heather.Brown@resourcecenter.org		
	Charlotte Crawford	ccrawford@lakeplains.org	Matt Scollin	mgscollin@adirondackhealth.org	10/6/2020	4/6/202
Liaison	Mandy Qualls	mqualls@cnyahec.org			11/3/2020	5/4/202
Karin Blackburn	Alison Coates	alison.m.coates@gmail.com			12/1/2020	6/1/202
	Tony D'Agostino	anthony.dadostino@dmv.ny.gov			1/5/2020	7/6/202
	Scott Emery	scott.emery@mshallassociates.com			2/2/2020	8/3/202
	Carrie Roseamelia	roseanec@upstate.edu			3/2/2020	
	Helen Evans	evansh@ardentnetwork.org				
Policy	Meets 4th Wednesdays aln	nost every month at 9:00 am				
	Barry Brogan (Chair)	barry@behavioralhealthnet.org	Liz Urbanski Farrell	efarrell@wnyha.com		
	Claire Parde	cparde@columbiahealthnet.org	Anne Marie Snell	anne@gethealthyslc.org	9/23/2020	4/28/202
Liaison	Nancy McGraw	Nancy.mcgraw@co.sullivan.ny.us	Rob Wingate	rwingate@chahec.org	10/28/2020	5/26/202
Sara Wall Bollinger	Paul Pettit	paul.pettit@orleanscountyny.gov	Courtney Shaler	cshaler@ahihealth.org	12/9/2020	6/23/202
	Ann Abdella	abdella@a2rh.net	Susan Williams	susan@sevenvalleyshealth.org	1/27/2020	7/28/202
	Bryan O'Donovan	bryan odonovan@urmc.reochester.edu			2/24/2020	8/25/202
	Mandy Qualls	mqualls@cnyahec.org			3/24/2020	
	Scott Emery	scott.emery@mshallassociates.com				
	Victoria Reid	vreid@erhny.org				
	Helen Evans	evansh@ardentnetwork.org				
Education	Meets 3rd Tuesday of almo	st every month at 9:00 am				
	Education Committee Chair					
			Kris Steigler	kstiegler@albany.edu	10/20/2020	4/20/2020
Liaisons	Gertrude O'Sullivan	gertrude@fchealth.org	Carly Lovelett	coloveletl@cphospital.org	11/17/2020	5/18/202
Karin Blackburn	Tony D'Agostino	anthony.dadostino@dmv.ny.gov	Ashley Conti	contia@hcanetwork.org	12/15/2020	6/15/2020
Sara Wall Bollinger	Helen Evans	evansh@ardentnetwork.org	Coreen Bohl	coreenbohl@citizenadvocates.net	1/19/2020	7/20/202
_			Christa Parish	cparish@nahecnet.org	2/16/2020	8/17/202
			Pat Fontana	pfontana@fdrhpo.org	3/16/2020	